
Page 1 BOC/STAFF/10/03/2013

STAFF MEETING MINUTES  
LANCASTER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

COUNTY-CITY BUILDING, ROOM 113
THURSDAY, OCTOBER 3, 2013

8:30 A.M.

Commissioners Present: Larry Hudkins, Chair 
Brent Smoyer, Vice Chair
Deb Schorr
Jane Raybould
Roma Amundson

Others Present: Kerry Eagan, Chief Administrative Officer
Gwen Thorpe, Deputy Chief Administrative Officer
Cori Beattie, Deputy County Clerk
Ann Taylor, County Clerk’s Office

Advance public notice of the Board of Commissioners Staff Meeting was posted on the
County-City Building bulletin board and the Lancaster County, Nebraska, web site and
provided to the media on October 2, 2013.

The Chair noted the location of the Open Meetings Act and opened the meeting at
8:33 a.m.

AGENDA ITEM

 1 APPROVAL OF THE STAFF MEETING MINUTES OF OCTOBER 1,
2013

MOTION: Amundson moved and Schorr seconded approval of the Staff Meeting
minutes of October 1, 2013.  Amundson, Schorr and Hudkins voted aye. 
Raybould and Smoyer were absent from voting.  Motion carried 3-0. 

 2 ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA

A. Amendment of Lincoln-Lancaster County Air Pollution Regulations and
Standards (See Item 5)

B. Reuse of Former Jail Facility

MOTION: Amundson moved and Schorr seconded approval of the additions to the
agenda.  Schorr, Amundson and Hudkins voted aye.  Raybould and
Smoyer were absent from voting.  Motion carried 3-0.



Page 2 BOC/STAFF/10/03/2013

Raybould arrived at the meeting at 8:35 a.m.

 3 COMMUNITY MENTAL HEALTH CENTER (CMHC) TRANSITION
UPDATE - Gwen Thorpe, Deputy Chief Administrative Officer; Ron
Sorensen, Community Mental Health Center (CMHC) Executive Director

Ron Sorensen, Community Mental Health Center (CMHC) Executive Director, said
Region V has gone through the pre-Request for Proposal (RFP) process for transition
of  psychiatric residential rehabilitation services to a new provider and has accepted
letters of intent to go through the RFP process from several organizations.  He also
reported that CenterPointe took over operation of day rehabilitation services at the
Midtown Center on October 1st and information regarding the number of clients by
program and funding source has been provided to Lutheran Family Services (LFS). 

Smoyer arrived at the meeting at 8:37 a.m.

Sorensen said CMHC continues to accept admissions and disseminated copies of a
simplified admissions process that has been instituted (Exhibit A).

Amundson noted LFS has expressed concerns about the closing of case files. 
Sorensen explained there are differences in closing files depending on whether they
relate to the electronic system or hard case files.  He said they close the electronic files
of clients who have not been seen at CMHC for 90 days but maintain the hard case
files for up to ten years because clients may be enrolled in more than one service or
program or could return.  Sorensen said CMHC is now caught up on closing files on the
State’s Magellan Behavioral Health Services System.

Gwen Thorpe, Deputy Chief Administrative Officer, presented the action taken by the
LFS Board of Directors expressing LFS’s commitment to move forward with Lancaster
County and Region V in the transition and implementation of the core services
(outpatient counseling, day treatment, community support and medication
management) from CMHC to LFS (Exhibit B).  She said LFS will contact her later in the
day regarding the next steps.  Thorpe said LFS is also reviewing the contract the
County Attorney’s Office has drafted.

Raybould asked whether LFS has improved communication with CMHC’s staff.  Schorr
explained that LFS was unable to make financial commitments or offer positions to
staff until its Board took action.  Raybould suggested Thorpe ask LFS to provide a
timeline relating to employees, i.e., when will they begin the interview process, when
will they make offers of employment, etc., so staff have some idea of how LFS is
proceeding.  



Page 3 BOC/STAFF/10/03/2013

Hudkins inquired about the funding the Board has committed to LFS, up to $450,000
of the $500,000 allocated for the transition.  Thorpe said it will be on a cost
reimbursement basis.  Brittany Behrens, Deputy County Attorney, appeared and said
Region V has also committed $100,000 and she drafted the contract to stipulate that
the first $100,000 in expenses would come from those funds.  She said LFS felt that
was appropriate.  LFS will also provide a list of items they consider transition expenses
so the Board can determine whether they are items the County can statutorily pay for.

Thorpe also reported that the Purchasing Department took pictures of surplus property
at the Midtown Center and notified other departments in case they were interested. 
She said the Corrections Department does not have work crews available so
Purchasing will hire movers to dispose of what is left.  Hudkins asked whether any of
the furniture could be used for the new Juvenile Probation offices.  Thorpe said
Juvenile Probation and Community Corrections will be receiving the Workforce
Investment Office’s surplus furniture. 

ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER REPORT

F. Amendment of Rural Levy Resolution (County Resolution No. 13-
0052)

Dennis Meyer, Budget and Fiscal Officer, appeared and said a resolution will be
scheduled on the October 8, 2013 County Board of Commissioners Meeting agenda to
amend the 15 cent levy allocation to political subdivisions subject to County levy
authority.  He said the amendment is needed to correct the figure shown for the
Bennet Rural Fire District.

 4 YOUTH SERVICES CENTER (YSC) CONTRACT WITH STATE
PROBATION ADMINISTRATION FOR DETENTION SERVICES -
Brittany Behrens, Deputy County Attorney; Sheli Schindler, Youth
Services Center (YSC) Director

Brittany Behrens, Deputy County Attorney, said negotiations with State Probation
Administration for the Youth Services Center (YSC) detention services contract are at
an impasse.  Medical and transportation costs are the “sticking points”.  She said Corey
Steel, Deputy Administrator for State Probation Administration, told her State
Probation is proposing a higher per diem ($275) in order to compensate the County for
medical costs, but did not indicate whether the higher rate would have anything to do
with transportation costs.  Behrens said Legislative Bill (LB) 561, which changed
provisions and transferred responsibilities regarding the juvenile justice system, does
not provide clarity for either item.  She said it will be impossible for the Youth Services
Center (YSC) to project those costs because they had always been paid by the
Department of Health and Human Services (HHS).  Behrens asked Steele to provide
the County with those figures so it can determine whether the proposed per diem



Page 4 BOC/STAFF/10/03/2013

would adequately cover those costs but he indicated it would be difficult to obtain that
information from HHS.  Steele later proposed a 50/50 split of medical costs.

It was noted statutory language makes the County the payor of last resort (see
Nebraska Revised Statute §43-290). 

Sheli Schindler, YSC Director, projected the proposed increase in per diem will only
provide an additional $21,000 which is not a significant amount.  In terms of
transportation, Schindler said the County has always provided transportation to and
from court.  If the State wants the County to take on transporting youth to their
placements (in or out of state) or picking up runaways, the cost could be significant.  

Another issue is that the State will no longer pay for violators of conditional release.
Schindler said not every county operates their courts like Lancaster County does.  She
said youth who are adjudicated, pre-disposition and are supervised by Probation
constitute the largest population and those that have a violation are returned to
detention.  The State will no longer reimburse the County for that population, which
could result in a loss of $1,230,000.  Behrens said the County could view it as an
alleged violation of probation, in which case Probation would be responsible for costs,
and the State could view it as a new law violation, in which the County would be
responsible for costs.  She said the language she proposed would make Probation
responsible for costs in a situation in which the facts indicate that there is both an
alleged violation of probation and a new law violation.  The State holds the view that
since the County Attorney won’t have the ability to file a revocation of probation in
that situation, it is a new law violation and the County is responsible.  Behrens said
this is an issue of great concern because it is a huge population and because of how
the courts and alternatives to detention operate in Lancaster County.

Raybould said this is another cost shifting mechanism.  Schorr added that Lancaster
County may not be able to afford to house these youth. 

There was consensus to continue the contract negotiations, declaring an impasse on
the medical issue until the other issues are resolved.

 5 UPDATE ON PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO COUNTY HEALTH
RESOLUTIONS: A) COUNTY RESOLUTION NO. 03-0007 (BODY
ART AND PIERCING ESTABLISHMENTS; B) COUNTY
RESOLUTION NO. 02-30 (ON-SITE WASTEWATER TREATMENT
SYSTEMS; C) COUNTY RESOLUTION NO. 06-0005 (INSPECTION
OF ON-SITE WATER SUPPLY AND WASTEWATER TREATMENT
SYSTEMS PRIOR TO SALE, TRANSFER OR CONVEYANCE); AND D)
AMENDMENT OF LINCOLN-LANCASTER COUNTY AIR POLLUTION
REGULATIONS AND STANDARDS (SEE ITEM 2A) - Judy Halstead,
Lincoln-Lancaster County Health Department (LLCHD) Director; Scott
Holmes, Environmental Public Health Division Manager, LLCHD; Brittany
Behrens, Deputy County Attorney



Page 5 BOC/STAFF/10/03/2013

Judy Halstead, Lincoln-Lancaster County Health Department (LLCHD) Director, said the
fee increases were proposed as part of the City’s biennial budget two years ago and
were made public at that time.  She said they are bringing back ones that are relevant
for the County.  All four amendments have been approved by the Board of Health and
will go to the City Council for ratification.  Halstead recommended that the County re-
adopt the entire set of health regulations to keep everything clear.  

In response to a question from Hudkins, Scott Holmes, Environmental Public Health
Division Manager, LLCHD, said there are no body art establishments under the
County’s jurisdiction in the County at this time.

A public hearing on the amendments is scheduled on the October 15, 2013 County
Board of Commissioners Meeting agenda. 

 6 EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT PROGRAM GRANT (EMPG) REPORT -
Doug Ahlberg, Emergency Management Director

Doug Ahlberg, Emergency Management Director, noted the County was awarded
$120,000 in Emergency Management Program Grant (EMPG) funds from the Federal
Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) for Fiscal Year (FY) 2012-2013 and said he
has applied for $175,000 for FY 2013-2014.  He said he recently received $34,927.98
from a reallocation of unexpended funds for FY2012-2013.  Ahlberg said he would like
to use the funds to purchase night vision equipment for the Lancaster County Sheriff’s
Office and pay instructors who provided a training session for rural fire departments. 
He said a state agency had committed to pay for the training but could not do so
because the training did not meet a requirement to be pre-approved 60 days prior to
taking place.  The training had been scheduled far in advance but had only been pre-
approved 30 days prior to taking place.  Ahlberg said there is a funding shortage of
$2,800.

MOTION: Schorr moved and Smoyer seconded to authorize the allocation of funds,
as outlined.  Smoyer, Schorr, Amundson, Raybould and Hudkins voted
aye.  Motion carried 5-0.

ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER REPORT

A. County Road Access Request from Jakeb Mrsny

Eagan said the County Engineer denied the request because the property is located
within the City’s three-mile zoning jurisdiction and in a subdivision that has restrictive
covenants.

MOTION: Amundson moved to deny the request.

The motion died for the lack of a second.



Page 6 BOC/STAFF/10/03/2013

Board consensus was to schedule discussion with Mrsny and the County Surveyor on a
future Staff Meeting agenda.

 7 COMPUTERS FOR JUVENILE PROBATION EXPANSION
(C#106589, 6 PC’s AND 18 COMPUTER MONITORS, $11,154.24
FROM JUVENILE PROBATION BUDGET; AND C#106588, 10 PC’S,
6 LAPTOP COMPUTERS, ETC., $8,923.54 FROM LEGISLATIVE
BILL (LB) 561 JUVENILE ENHANCEMENT GRANT) - Lori Griggs,
Chief Juvenile Probation Officer

Hudkins asked whether there are plans to transition computers that had been used by
Office of Juvenile Services (OJS) case workers to Juvenile Probation.  NOTE:
Legislative Bill (LB) 561 transferred certain responsibilities from OJS to Juvenile
Probation.  Lori Griggs, Chief Juvenile Probation Officer, said she is not aware of any. 
Raybould asked whether a formal request has been made to the State to use the
computer equipment when the State transitions some of its officers.  Griggs explained
many of the probation officers that are being hired to help handle the additional
responsibilities are new hires, not transfers from the State.  

Griggs referenced earlier discussion regarding the contract with State Probation
Administration for detention services at YSC (see Item 4) and clarified procedural
issues related to detention.  She said the process is different than when OJS made a
unilateral decision to hold youth in YSC for 15 days while they were being evaluated.

Schorr asked Griggs for her opinion on the medical component.  Griggs said Juvenile
Probation has a process in place to obtain insurance information and assist parents in
accessing the ACCESS Nebraska website if they appear to be eligible for Medicaid. 
Probation funds can also be used to assist with payments. 

Eagan said Juvenile Probation’s micro computer request is split in two parts.  The first
part would be paid from Juvenile Probation’s budget and the other would be paid with
funds from a Juvenile Enhancement Grant.  He noted the Board had allocated $10,900
in the Microcomputer Fund for Juvenile Probation, which would cover most of the first
part of the request (a difference of $254.24).  Schorr noted that the cost is a result of
LB 561 and felt the Board should only authorize those that will be purchased through
the Juvenile Enhancement Grant.

Sara Hoyle, Juvenile Justice Coordinator, appeared and said Douglas County may
appeal the amount it was recommended to receive from the Juvenile Enhancement
Grant, which could reduce what Lancaster County is recommended to receive
($50,000).  She said even if Lancaster County receives the full $50,000, it will not
cover all of the expenses associated with Juvenile Probation’s expansion, such as office
space and renovation.



Page 7 BOC/STAFF/10/03/2013

MOTION: Raybould moved and Amundson seconded to approve the microcomputer
request, stipulating that C#106589 will be funded through the
Microcomputer Fund rather than Juvenile Probation’s budget, and
C#106588 will be funded by Juvenile Probation’s budget with
reimbursement by the Juvenile Enhancement Grant.  Raybould,
Amundson, Smoyer, Schorr and Hudkins voted aye.  Motion carried 5-0.

 8 ACTION ITEMS

There were no action items.

 9 CONSENT ITEMS

There were no consent items.

10 ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER REPORT

A. County Road Access Request from Jakeb Mrsny

Item was moved forward on the agenda.

B. Request from Lower Platte South Natural Resources District (NRD) to
Replace Trail Caution Sign on South 25th Street for Homestead Trail

There was consensus to prepare a resolution for maintenance of trail caution signs in
the County’s right-of-way along Homestead Trail.

C. Press Release Regarding Lancaster County’s Position on the
Legislature’s Tax Modernization Committee

Raybould felt the County should go on record with its concerns regarding the costs
being picked up from the State.  Eagan agreed to draft a “white paper” (position
statement) and said he will schedule discussion with Gordon Kissel and Joe Kohout,
the County’s legislative consultants, on the October 17th Staff Meeting agenda.  He also
recommended the Board provide testimony at the Tax Modernization Committee’s
public hearing on October 18th at the State Capitol Building.  Smoyer, Hudkins and
Raybould offered to testify on behalf of the County at the hearing.

D. Reappointment of Ken Weber to Lincoln-Lancaster County Planning
Commission

Schorr said she contacted Weber and he indicated he is willing to serve another term
on the Planning Commission.

The Board scheduled the reappointment on the October 8, 2013 County Board of
Commissioners Meeting agenda.



Page 8 BOC/STAFF/10/03/2013

Schorr said Weber expressed concern that some of the Planning Commissioners do not
understand development, roads and the impact their decisions have on the City’s
three-mile zoning jurisdiction.  She asked the Chair and Vice Chair to relay Weber’s
concerns to the Mayor at their next meeting.

E. Vacation Schedule Process

There was consensus to do away with the large laminated vacation calendar and move
to printouts from the electronic calendar.  

F. Amendment of Rural Levy Resolution (County Resolution No. 13-
0052)

Item was moved forward on the agenda.

ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA

B. Reuse of Former Jail Facility

Schorr said she would like to continue discussions regarding the sale of certain County-
owned properties so the Board can determine how much funding it will have available
to renovate the former jail facility.  There was consensus to schedule discussion with
Don Killeen, County Property Manager, and John Kay, Sinclair Hille & Associates Inc.  

11 PENDING

There were no pending items.

12 DISCUSSION OF BOARD MEMBER MEETINGS

A. Lincoln Independent Business Association (LIBA) Monthly Meeting -
Smoyer

Smoyer said they discussed the increase in the valuation of vacant lots in Lancaster
County, due to the County Attorney’s interpretation of state statutes.

B. Lancaster County Correctional Facility Joint Public Agency (JPA)
Meeting - Smoyer

Smoyer said they approved claims totaling $90,534.18 from Wells Fargo for bank fees,
Sampson Construction Company, the Construction Manager at-Risk; Farris Engineering
for interior design work related to the warehouse; and Bob & Don’s Plumbing for
warehouse utilities.



Page 9 BOC/STAFF/10/03/2013

C. Lincoln Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) - Smoyer

Smoyer said they discussed how to increase bike ridership.

D. Planning Meeting with Marvin Krout, Planning Director, and Sara
Hartzell, Planner - Smoyer

Smoyer said they discussed a Citizens Institute for Rural Design grant opportunity for
rural communities and a request from the Lincoln Airport Authority for a zoning and
annexation change on property it owns south of Highway 34. 

Board consensus was to schedule a briefing on the grant opportunity at the Board’s
next meeting with village representatives.

E. Chamber Coffee - Amundson, Smoyer

Amundson said they discussed job creation growth in Lincoln, housing development in
outlying areas, and the Lincoln Public Schools’ (LPS’) growth and possible bond issue
to address projects in its 10-Year Plan.

13 EMERGENCY ITEMS AND OTHER BUSINESS

There were no emergency items or other business.

14 ADJOURNMENT

MOTION: Smoyer moved and Raybould seconded to adjourn the meeting at 10:34
a.m.  Amundson, Raybould, Schorr, Smoyer and Hudkins voted aye. 
Motion carried 5-0.

_________________
Dan Nolte
Lancaster County Clerk






























































